
The City of Durant encourages participation form all its citizens. If participation at any public meeting is 
not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting is encouraged in order to make the necessary accommodations. The City of Durant may waive 
the 48-hour rule if interpreters for the deaf (signing) or translation services for limited English proficient 

(LEP) individuals are not the necessary accommodation.
 

DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY
 

4:00 PM Roscoe J. Hatfield
Council Chambers,

300 West Evergreen,
Durant, Oklahoma

April 5, 2022

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER
INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE
ROLL CALL
ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Consent Items
  To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote.

 a. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of March 1, 2022
 b. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of Special Meeting March 14, 2022
 c. Consider Approval of Financial Report
2. Consider Items Removed from Consent
3. Information Items
 a. Director's Report
4. Administration
 a. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on Extending the Contract with 

New Growth Group until October 31, 2022
 b. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on Easement Request 

Submitted by Oklahoma Gas & Electric for property located at Country Club 
and South McLean  

 c. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on Adopting the 2022-23 
Annual Budget

5. Executive Session

Page 1 of 60



 a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 
economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business. This Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, 
Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes.

 b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5 a.
6. New Business
ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATE
This is to certify that in conformity with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, public notice 
of the date, time and place of this meeting was filed with the City Clerk of Durant on the 
17th day of November, 2021 and that an agenda of said meeting was posted at the 
place of such meeting at 3:30 p.m. on the 31st day of March, 2022.

_______________________________________
Ellie Flynn, City of Durant

Page 2 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 1.a.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of March 1, 2022 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. DIA 3.1.2022 Minutes (1)

Page 3 of 60



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY
March 1, 2022 AT 4:00 PM, 
Roscoe J. Hatfield
Council Chambers,
300 West Evergreen,
Durant, Oklahoma

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Hammock called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.

INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE

Chairman Hammock provided the invocation.

ROLL CALL

Present:
Trustee Edwin Boothe
Trustee Steve Brittingham
Trustee Mike Davis*
Trustee Grace Rudolf
Trustee Jeff Shattuck
Vice Chairman Brett Rogers
Chairman Jeff Hammock
Advisory Member Tammye Gwin
Advisory Member Thomas Newsom

Absent:
None

*Denotes partial attendance
ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Consent Items
  To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote.

Motion was made by Trustee Shattuck and seconded by Trustee Boothe to approve 

Page 4 of 60



consent items as presented.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

 a. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 1, 2022

 b. Consider Approval of Financial Report

2. Consider Items Removed from Consent
3. Information Items
 a. Executive Director Report

4. Administration
 a. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on a Certificate of Deposit Held 

at Simmons Bank in the Amount of approximately $353,311.66.

Motion was made by Vice Chairman Rogers and seconded by Trustee Shattuck to 
approve closing the Certificate of Deposit held at Simmons Bank in the approximate 
amount of +/- $353,311.66 and moving the funds to the Durant Industrial Authority 
checking account at First United Bank.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

 b. Consider Sponsorship of the EAA Airventure Oshkosh Event at a Cost of 
$5,000 (previously approved on January 4, 2022 in the amount of $4,000)

Motion was made by Vice Chairman Rogers and seconded by Trustee Boothe to 
approve the increase of the sponsorship of the EAA Airventure Oshkosh event from the 
previous amount of $4,000 to $5,000.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

Page 5 of 60



5. Executive Session
 a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 

economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business. This Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, 
Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes.

Motion was made by Trustee Brittingham and seconded by Trustee Boothe to enter 
executive session.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

----------------------------------------------------
Trustee Mike Davis entered at 4:37 pm.
----------------------------------------------------

Motion was made by Chairman Hammock and seconded by Trustee Boothe to return 
from executive session.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

 b. Consider Action on Item 5a.

No action.

6. New Business

There was no new business.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Trustee Shattuck and seconded by Vice Chairman Rogers to 
adjourn.

Page 6 of 60



Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

Page 7 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 1.b.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of Special Meeting March 14, 2022 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. DIA 3.14.2022 Minutes (Special Meeting)

Page 8 of 60



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY
March 14, 2022 AT 2:00 PM, 
Roscoe J. Hatfield
Council Chambers,
300 West Evergreen,
Durant, Oklahoma

SPECIAL MEETING

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Hammock called the meeting to order at 2:02 pm.

INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE

Trustee Shattuck provided the invocation.

ROLL CALL

Present:
Trustee Edwin Boothe
Trustee Steve Brittingham
Trustee Jeff Shattuck
Chairman Jeff Hammock
Advisory Member Tammye Gwin

Absent:
Trustee Mike Davis
Trustee Grace Rudolf
Vice Chairman Brett Rogers
Advisory Member Thomas Newsom

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Administration
 a. Discussion and Consideration of Action Against Southwest Pickling Inc. and 

owner, Roby Mersecchi for damages to property owned by the Durant 
Industrial Authority, Located at 64 Waldron Road.

Motion was made by Chairman Hammock and seconded by Trustee Brittingham to 
authorize DIA Executive Director, Lisa Taylor, to begin the investigation process with 

Page 9 of 60



legal council and take the necessary steps to secure the property at 64 Waldron Road.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Shattuck, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

2. Executive Session
 a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 

economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business. This Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, 
Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes.

Motion was made by Trustee Shattuck and seconded by Trustee Brittingham to enter 
executive session.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Shattuck, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

Motion was made by Trustee Brittingham and seconded by Trustee Shattuck to return 
from executive session.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Shattuck, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

 b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 1 a

Motion was made by Trustee Brittingham and seconded by Trustee Boothe to authorize 
staff to negotiate an incentives package of up to $2.5 million dollars in value for Project 
Bison.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Shattuck, Hammock

Page 10 of 60



Nays: None
Abstain: None

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Trustee Boothe and seconded by Trustee Shattuck to adjourn.

Motion Passed with the following vote:

Ayes: Boothe, Brittingham, Shattuck, Hammock
Nays: None
Abstain: None

Page 11 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 1.c.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Consider Approval of Financial Report 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Feb 2022 DIA & ED Reports
2. Feb 2022 DIA & ED Incode

Page 12 of 60



Page 13 of 60



Page 14 of 60



Page 15 of 60



Page 16 of 60



Page 17 of 60



Page 18 of 60



Page 19 of 60



Page 20 of 60



Page 21 of 60



Page 22 of 60



Page 23 of 60



Page 24 of 60



Page 25 of 60



Page 26 of 60



Page 27 of 60



Page 28 of 60



Page 29 of 60



Page 30 of 60



Page 31 of 60



Page 32 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 3.a.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Director's Report 

Director's Report 
 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. March 2022 Report

Page 33 of 60



Monthly Economic Development Report 

March 2022 

To: Chairman and Trustees 

From: Lisa Taylor, Director 

Date: March 30, 2022 

DIA Property Updates 
• East Industrial Park - Property sale closed on Friday, February 25.  Proceeds in the 

amount of $861,775.91 was deposited. 
• Country Club 20 Acre Parcel - Documentation has been sent to Wall Engineering to 

start the process of road design.
• West Industrial Park - Information was provided to a prospect in December, and an 

ongoing discussion has since taken place.  A formal proposal for the project was 
submitted, and Durant was selected to move forward in the process. Durant is a 
finalist with sites from another state, but is the only site still being considered in 
Oklahoma.  An offer of incentives has been presented to the company, and we are 
waiting to hear back about whether we have been cut or will move forward to the 
site visit round.

Recruitment Activities 
• Met virtually with representatives of Project Aussie.  This company is interested in 

locating at the airport, and we are currently working to gain local approval in order to 
move forward with the project.

• Spoke with owner of Project KP company on March 3, who indicated that they have 
decided to consolidate their two existing sites into one due to economy, and they are no 
longer in need of an additional site.

• Met with representatives of a taxi cab company with plans to expand to Durant.  The 
Durant City Council voted on an update Taxicab ordinance in January, and it has been 
shared with owners of the taxicab business interested in expanding to Durant. Taxicab 
Owner indicated that they are working through a few issues on their end, but should be 
ready soon.

• Met with representatives of Retail Strategies.  We currently have eleven national retail/
restaurant brands interested in Durant.  Of note, I have been fielding calls/ discussions 
with seven development companies interested in developing in Durant for national 
brand tenants.  Developers have been given local information and have been connected 
to representatives of Retail Strategies.

Retention Activities 

• Conducted two BRE Interviews this month, and hosted a BRE Interview training for 
OKSBDC and Durant Main Street EV Committee Members. 

Page 34 of 60



Other 

• Submitted grant proposals to EDA and USDA Rural Development.  Will be several 
months before we hear back.

• Followed up on Waldron Road realignment easement information.
• Participated in the following meetings: Durant Industrial Authority, City Council,  

Select Oklahoma, Oklahoma Marketing Committee, Community Development 
Council Board, Southeast Oklahoma Regional Transportation Organization Board, 
Bluezones Places Committee, Oklahoma Manufacturing Alliance Luncheon, and 
Brucepac Groundbreaking Ceremony.

• Made updates to the DIA website and social media pages.
• Hosted kickoff meetings for the TOP Grant opportunity.

Page 35 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 4.a.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on Extending the Contract with New Growth 

Group until October 31, 2022 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. C-2021-61 Consulting Agreement between DIA and New Growth Group for Grant Writing Services FULLY 

SIGNED (2)

Page 36 of 60



CONSI'LTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Consulting Services Agreement ('Agreement") is entored into this l5th day of Apil,2021,
in Durant, Bryan Comty, Oklahoma, by and between the Board ofTrustees ofthe Durant Industrial
Authority, acting on behalf of the City of Durant, Oklahoma (hereinafter 'DIA), and the New
Growth Group, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company located at 1427 East 366 Str€et, Suite
20044, Cleveland, Ohio 44114 (hereinafter'New Growth").

TilHEREAS, New Growth represents that it is specifically qualifled and equipped to perform the
work and / or services described in t}te manner specified herein; and

WIIEREAS, New Growth agees to perform zuch services for DIA under the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, TIIEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth hercin the parties agree
as follows:

1. Scope of Services
New Growth will provide the grant writing services to DIA specified in a Scope of Work ('SOW'),
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. In the event DIA engages New Growth for
additional consulting services beyond what is listed in the SO% the parties will enter a separate
wdtten agrcement

2. Compensation
For the timely and satisfactory performance of agreed upon serviccs, DIA will pay New Growth
in the amount of$47,500.

3. Invoicing and Pryment
New Growth will invoice DIA upon timely completion and transmission of all grant documents to
DIA. Upon receipt of the invoice from New Growth and verification of documents submitted, DIA
will remit payment to New Growth within 30 days. Payment is due to New Growth whether or not
DIA successfully submits the grant(s) to the funde(s) in a timely manner.

4. Term and Terminrtion
Unless earlier terminated, this Agreement shall be in effeot for the duration of the assignments
covered by the SOW. If either party desires to terminate this Agreement due to the other party's
breach, the non-breaching party shall provide a detailed notice at least ten days prior to the
proposed tennination date. Absent mutual written agreement between the parties, neither party can
terminate this Agreement for convenience.

The provisions of Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 sha[ swvive termination of this Agreement or
expiration of the scrvices pcrformcd.

c-202t-6t

WIIEREAS, DIA and New Growth intend to enter an agreeme[t whereby New Growth will
provide grant writing services for DIA and City of Durant, Oklahoma

Page 37 of 60



c-202t-67

5. Confidential Information
New Growth acknowledges and agrees that in the coruse of the perfonnance of the services

pursuant to this Agreemen! New Growth may be given access to, or come into possession of
confidential information of DIA, which may contain trade secrets, proprietary data or other

confidential information. New Growth acknowledges and agrees that it will not use, duplicate, or

divulge to others any confidential information, including without limitation, trade secrets

belonging to or disclosed to New Growth by DIA without first obtaining written permission from

DIA. :.Confidential information" as used hereiq includes information, materials, products and

deliverables developed during, and discoveries and contributions made by New Growth in the

performance of this Agreement. All tangible embodiments of such information shall be delivered

io DIA by New Growth upon termination hereof, or upon request by DIA, whichever first occu6.

6. I ntellectual Property
Except as may be specified as New Growth's prc-existing lntellectual Property in a particular

SOW, New Growth hcreby assigns, and shall assigr, any and all rights, title and interest, including,

but not limited to, copyrights, trade secrets and proprietary rights to the information, materials,

products and deliverables developed during the performance ofthis Agreement to DlA. All work
performed under this Agrcement and all infomration, materials, pmducts and deliverables

developcd pursuant to this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of DIA and all title and

interest therein shalt vest in DIA. All zuch information, materials, products and deliverables shall

be deemed to bc "works made for hire" under the Federal Copyright l^aws. Purzuanl to its exclusive

pmprietary rights, DIA shall have the sole and exclusive right inter alia to use, modi! or adapt

the information, materials, producB or deliverables that New Growth developcd during the

performance ofthis Agreement or, at DIA's discretio& to assign all or any portion of such rights

to its clients. New Growth agre€s to give DIA all necessary assistance rcquired to perfect the

assignment of rights defined in this Article 5. DIA shall permit New Growth to use inforrnatioq
materials, products or deliverables that New Growth dwelopcd during the performance of this
Agrecment for business development purPoses.

7. Warranties
New Growth represents, warrants and covenants to DIA that:

(a) New Growth has firll right and authority to enter into this Agreement, and neither New Growth
nor its employees or agents, ifany, is undcr any pre-existing obligation or obligations inconsistont

with the provisions of this Agreement or the performance of any services for DIA;

(b) All Services shall be performed in a professional manner and shall be ofa high grade, natue
and quality, taking into account standards of work generally found in New Growth's industry;

(c) New Growth has, and at all times during the term of this Agreoment shall rnaintairU all
neccssary permits, licenses and regulatory approvals required to perform the services;

(d) Ncw Growth shall comply with all laws, rules, and regulations of any country, state,
municipality or other political entity applicable to the performance of the services;

Page 38 of 60



c-2027-61

(e) Each service rendered and deliverable prepared under this Agreement shall strictly conform to
the specifications and requirements contained in the applicable SOW, and all deliverables provided
hereunder shall be free of any omissions or material defects. Upon learning of the breach ofthe
preceding wamxlty, New Growth shall promptly and at no charge repair or replace the service
and/or deliverable, whichever is deemed most appropriate by DtA;

(0 Except as otherwise specifically set forth in an applicable SOW, all deliverables will be original,
unpublished works created by New Growth within the scope of their engagement and under
obligation to assign inventions to New Growth;

(g) None ofthe following will violate any applicable law or violate or infringe upon the copyright,
patent, trade secret or other intellectual property or propriety right of any third party:

(i) New Growth's performances ofservices hereunder,
(ii) DIA's use ofany deliverables, or
(iiD Any deliverables;

(i) New Growth will perform any and all services herermder using ordinary care and that all such
work shall be free of errors and defects.

8. Liability
(a) Each party shall be responsible for its own acts, errors, omissions relating to the performance
ofthis Agreement Each party, at its own expense, shall defeud any suit or dispose ofany claim or
other proceeding brought against it and shall pay all expenses, including attomey's fees, and satisfr
all judgments which may be incurred.

(b) Neither party shall be liable to the other for any indirect, special or consequential damages
arising out of or in connection with the services provided pursuant to this Agreement or the
performance or nonperformance ofobligations undertaken in this Agreement.

(b) Relationship: Nothing herein contained shall be consftued to imply ajoint venture, parhership
or principal-agent felationship between New Growth and DIA, and neither party shall have the

(h) Neither tle execution, delivery, nor performance of this Agreement constitutes a breach or
violation of any contract or agreement to which New Growth is a party or by which New Growth
is in any manner bound. New Growth further warrants and represents that it has no itrterests or
obligations, nor during the term hereof will it acquire any intercsts or obligations, which conflict
witl or hamper its ability to perform as required herein.

9. General Proyisions
(a) Waiver: The failure ofeither party to requks performance by the other ofany provision hereof
shall in no way affect the dght to require performance at any time tlereafter, nor shall the waiver
of a breach of any provision hereof be taken to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such
provision or as a waiver of the provision itself. AII remedies aflorded in this Agreement shall be
taken and construed as cumulative; that is, in addifion to every other remedy available at law or in
equity.

Page 39 of 60



right, power or authority to obligate or bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as

otherwise agreed to in writing.

(c) Assignment and Delegation: Neither party shall assign or delegate this Agreement or any

rights, duties or obligations hereunder without the express written consent ofthe other. Subject to

the foregoing, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors,

legal representatives and assignees of the Parties hereto.

(d) No Third-Party Beneficirries: Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended

or shall be construed to confer upon or give to any person other than the parties hereto and their

r€sp€ctive permitted successors and assigns, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this

Agreement, such third parties specifically including employees, and creditors of New Growth.

New Growth shall not claim any third-party or others rights to any prime or senior contracts to

which DIA is party, except to the extent, if any, specified in a Statement of Work.

(e) Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, such

provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary and possible to render it valid and

enforceable. In any event, the unenforceability or invalidity of any provision shall not affect any

other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, and

be construed and enforced, as if such provision had not been include4 or had been modified as

above provided, as the case may be.

(h) Counterparts: This Agrcement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which taken

together will constitute one single agreement arnongst the parties. A facsimile, scanned or
electronic copy of this Agreement, including the signature pages herein, shall be deemed to be an

original.

10. Notice
Any required notice under this Agreement shall be provided in writing and delivered to the

following:

If to DIA, addressed to Lisa Taylor, Economic Development Director, 300 West Evergreen,

Dumnt, OK 74701 and at ltaylor@durant.ore.

c-202L-6L

If to New Growth, addressed to Christopher Spence, Principal, New Growth Group, LLC, 1427

East 36th Street, Suite 20MA, Cleveland, Ohio 44114, cspence@newsrowtheroup.com with a

copy to Krissa Kean, Counsel, at the same mailing address, kkean@newsro\ theroup.com.

Page 40 of 60



c-202L-61

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Ageement by their duly authorized
representatives.

Durant Industrial Authority THE NEW GROWTH GROUP, LLC

)r4-
Lisa Tavlor. Executive Director
Name, Title

\
Date

Christopher Spence. Principal
Name, Title

4t15t2021

Date
r5/a-o:-t

Page 41 of 60



c-202L-61

Description of Services
New dowth Group, LLC., (New Growth) will provide grant services to Durant lndustrial

Authority (DIA), a public trust of the city of Durant, oklahoma. New Growth will assist with

grant writing servicis outside the normal municipal grant writing activities. Scope of grants

iervices wifinclude: . Onsite annual needs assessment and review. Research and identry
potential firnding sources for DIA or various Durant City departments ' Coordinate with DIA

offrciats for rrolict Development and Grant Proposal Development . Assistsnce with gla

reporting and compliaace, as needed.

DIA will pay $47,500 for these grants consulting services.

Term of Services: 12 months 04/15n021 - 04ll4nV2

New Growth Activitics and Deliverables

. In order to develop plans to identifi funding sources tlEt dign with Durant Industrial

Authority's (DLA) ar.uul ob.i""tir"s, New Growth will partner with key individuals at the

organization'to identifl current and aspirational fuuding sources, lcaming the prioritics ofthe

Ciiy,s major divisions to enablc tigbtcr alignmcnt bctwccn idcntifrcd opportunities and the gosls

ofkey leaders.

. New Growth will create and maintain a customized grant forecast by monitoring information

channels and filrcring grant opportunities. New Growth will conduct proactive outreach to

fimders and individuals with fimding informatiory and then provide actionable information to the

DIA. New Growth will provide the DIA with the forecast of federal and philanthropic sowces in

an excel format which includes grant criteri4 matching fund tequirements, and reporting and

compliance conditions ofpotential grant opportunities. The forecast will be updated quarterly.

Scheduled conversations with City's Economic Development Director and key Administration
will follow with further exploration ofpotential opportunities.

As part of the forecasting process, New Growth will conduct proactive research for funders and

communicate the information back to DIA. In addition, New Growth will initiate communication

with the program ofticers of funding programs, sending project concepts, scheduling phone

conversations for guidance and clarification. New Growth will also inform the public ofgrant
initiatives, disseminate glant projects as directed by funders, and create press releases for
required public notifications, facilitating public meetings/comments as necessary.

. Based on grants selected, New Growth, led by Director of Grant services Robin King, will
serve as the primary writer for four federal grant applications. This process will consist of
managing project meetings, developing project concepts, collecting necessary attachments'

,espondirg upp.priately to the funding announcement, and packaging the proposal pieces for

ExhibitA; SCOPE OFWORK

I. Services

Page 42 of 60



submission (nanative, summary, budget, budget narrative, and all attachments). Additional
grants may be added on a fee-for-service basis.

. New Growth will create an organizalional electronic filing system for $ant application
materials. AII grant applications will be stored in one location on a drive accessible to relevant
DIA and Durant City staff @xecutive Director, Project Managers, Business and Finance
Department). Grants will be organized by year ofapplication and client. Each grant will have a
project summary page, an application materials folder, an award materials folder, a budget
folder, and a reporting folder. Each folder will have documents that New Growth will compile
and complete specific to each awarded grant's guidelines.

. New Growth will develop written policies and procedures needed to ensure compliance with
state and federal iaw. Additionally, New Growth will develop processes to help centralize grant
management tasks. Tools and resources inciude grant management handbooks and templates for
each awarded grant that outline key provisions, reporting due dates, project timelines, and
necessary documentation to amend the agreement. New Growth will work closely with DIA staff
to assess current capacity and capability and will deliver stategic technical assistance to onboard
them to the new tools and build the staffs familiarity and comfort with using them. New Growth
will lead the development of grant management handbooks and other implementation tools such
as monitoring checklists and grant closeout checklists. When necessary, New Growth will
prepare and review grant reports for submission to the appropriate funder.

New Growth uses an inclusive project development methodology that involves client co-creation
and development of deliverables. As New Growth begins to develop deliverables for grants, we
will check in at least twice a month with the DIA to ensure alignment with strategic objectives
and staff capacity. New Growth will also employ hands-on supportive coaching and strategic
assistance. This will include frequent check-ins and quick tumaround time for troubleshooting
problems as they adse.

New Growth will request materials from DIA staff and City departrnents to build a library of
grant resources, including previously awarded grants, project descriptions, resumeV bios, and
other materials to support easier development of grant proposals. These will be stored
electronically in a customized online fi1ing system that will allow easy access for granl
preparation. New Growth will work very closely with the appropriate DIA officials to accurately
reflect subject-specific content within the grant proposals.

c-2027-6L

. For the scope of work for this project New Growth will work very closely with DIA project
managers, administrators, and financial staff to understand their current policies and procedures
and identifu places to build on existing structues. We will work closely with Durant City's
Economic Development Director and administration to develop the rules and capacity needed to
establish a fully functional grant-seeking process. New Growth will be ttre primary driver of
action, providing coachiag and technical assistance to tire staff ofthe DIA.

Page 43 of 60



c-2027-61

DIA Responsibilities

DIA is responsible for: (1) the successful and timely review ofthe grant applications; (2) extemal

stakeholder communication in the grant development process including determination of
partnering organizations and the level of participation for each; (3) guidance and approval of
project strategies, staffrng, and budgets; and (4) grant system registation, upload, and submission.

II. Fees

Onslte Needs Assc$ment

This fee also includes travel for New Growth projed tearn members to make an in-person site

visit at least one time in the year. This will include coordination and interviews with appropriate

DIA administration and a written document outlining the community needs and funding plan.

Annual sitc visit/ quarterly check-in (via phone,/ webinar)/ expand to ongoing communication
inftastructure/ connection to management proccss.

Travel: $1500 pcr person/ 2 people: $3000

Needs Assessment: $7000

Sub-Total: $10,000

Grant Reseerch / Forec'ast

For the creation and quarterly update of a customized forecast in partnenhip with city officials
and administration. This includes staging of projects, summaries of funding sources, and one-
page project concepts.

Sub-Total: $2,500

Pronosal I)evcloom ent

Development of four targeted $ant proposals ort behalf of the DIA.

New Growth will serve as the primary writer for four federal grant applications. This proccss

will consist of mur:aging project mcctings, developing project concepts, collccting nccessary

attachmenls, responding appropriately to the funding annoutrcement, and packaging the proposal
pieces for zubmission (narrative, summary, budget, budget narrative, and all attachmcnts). Grant

writing is estimated at $62.50 per hour with an average 100 hours per grant proposal ($6,250)

and four grant proposals per year ($6p50 X a = $25,000).
New Growth will invoice DIA in the amount of $6,250 upon timely completion and hansmission
of each final and properly completed grant documents. Upon receip of the invoice from New
Growth and verification of documents submitted, DIA will remit payment to New Growth within
30 days. Payment is due to Now Growth whether or not grants are funded.

Note: Additional grants may be added on a fee-for-service basis.

Sub-Total: $25,000

Reoortine and Comoliance

For the implementation of the intemal and external funding processes discussed above,

including, but not limited to, the development of the grants wdtten handbooks and policies

Page 44 of 60



c-2021-61

specific to grant reporting, filing, and orientation processes. As New Growth continues to work
with the DIA, the workload for reporting and compliance will increase with each successfirl
grant award. The baseline for this subsection is estimated for reporting and compliance ofone
federal grant award. This includes handbook/ template development, and reporting timelines, etc.

Sub-Total: $10,000

*As more grant proposals are awarded, New Growth will enrage in a separate scope of work
specific to administrative management of individual grants (these services can range in amount,
with a $15,000 maximum per additional federal grant. The final amount will be determined upon
new grant awards and based on the complexity of reporting and capacity of DIA staffto absorb
the reporting duties).

Total Fees for entire scope of work outlined in this document are S47,500, including travel

ilL Staff
Chris Spence, Robin King, and Kaci Roach will be the primary New Growth stafr; additional
New Growth team members may provide additional bandwidth depending on the necessary skill
sets required.

Page 45 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 4.b.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on Easement Request Submitted by Oklahoma 

Gas & Electric for property located at Country Club and South McLean   

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. SKM_C36822031721210 (1)

Page 46 of 60



Page 47 of 60



Page 48 of 60



Page 49 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 4.c.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on Adopting the 2022-23 Annual Budget 

Budget Proposal 
 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. DIA Proposed Budget 2022-23
2. 2022-23 Budget Comparison Worksheet
3. FUND 020&110 FY22-23 REQUESTED BUDGET

Page 50 of 60



Durant Industrial Authority Budget 
2022-23 

 
1. Contractual Expenditures Total:     $ 53,117 
  Audit Fees (Determined by Finance Dept) 8,117 
  Legal Fees 10,000 
Phone/ Telecommunications  (Determined by City Dept) 200 
Postage/ Freight 200 
Consulting Fees 5,000 
Publications/ Advertising See Justification 24,600 
Contract labor 5,000 

Total 53,117 
Audit fees are determined by the City Treasurer.   

Legal fees are expected to be incurred for various projects (Legal opinions, development of 
forgivable loan documents, Pickling Plant, etc). 

Consulting Fees  

Publications/ Advertising includes the following: 

• Sponsorships 

o Business Resource Guide - $5,000 

o EAA Airventure Oshkosh - $5,000 

o Zaza Event - $500 

o Discover Durant Magazine - $2,100 

o Durant Chamber Banquet - $1,000 

o Taste of Durant - $1,000 

o OK Southeast Striper Golf - $500 

o Select Oklahoma Tradeshow Sponsorship - $5,000 

o Other Advertising Opportunities - $3,000 

o Promotional Items - $1,500 

Contract Labor includes the following: 

• Website Updates - $3,000 

• Other Contract Labor - $2,000 

 
2. Materials & Supplies Total:       $14,305 

Comp. Software & Acc.  9,400 
Office Supplies  600 
Photocopies  500 
Membership/ Certifications  2,305 
Meeting Expenses  1,500 
Total  14,305 

Page 51 of 60



Computer software would include Customer Relationship Manager software (E Synchronist) and GIS 
Webtech platform used on our website for site locator and reporting capabilities.   
 
Office supplies are estimated at $50 per month.  Photocopies would include brochure printing. 
 
Memberships will include the following: 

• International Economic Development Council - $455 
• Select Oklahoma  - $950 
• Durant Chamber of Commerce $200 
• Oklahoma Southeast - $400   
• Southern Economic Development Council - $300 

 
Certifications:  PCED - $200 
 
Meeting expenses include catering and other related expenses. 
 
3. Other Expenses Total:     $18,590 

Misc. Expenditures  500 
Travel & Training  10,900 
IT Services and Fees Determined by City IT Dept 7,190 

Total 18,590 
 
   Training Includes:   

• SBA Conference Registration - $500 
 
   Travel includes: 

• Select Oklahoma Meetings - $2,400 
• EAA Airventure Oshkosh - $1,500 
• Zaza Event - $500 
• Select Oklahoma Tradeshow - $1,500 
• SBA Conference - $2,000 
• Misc Site Visits - $2,500 

Page 52 of 60



Category Description FY 19/20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22-23
Contractual

Audit Fees -$                             2,282.00$            7,260.00$            8,117.00$            
Legal Fees -$                             -$                     -$                     10,000.00$         
Office Space 14,700.00$                 14,700.00$         -$                     -$                     
Phone 900.00$                       900.00$               -$                     200.00$               
Postage 100.00$                       100.00$               100.00$               200.00$               
Consulting 4,000.00$                   5,000.00$            55,000.00$         5,000.00$            
Pub Ads 3,000.00$                   20,000.00$         34,417.00$         24,600.00$         
Contract Labor 30,000.00$                 3,000.00$            2,000.00$            5,000.00$            

52,700.00$                 45,982.00$         98,777.00$         53,117.00$         

Materials
Computer S & A 500.00$                       3,000.00$            2,800.00$            9,400.00$            
Photocopies 2,200.00$                   1,920.00$            400.00$               500.00$               
Office Supplies 500.00$                       1,200.00$            1,200.00$            600.00$               
Fuel 1,000.00$                   -$                     -$                     -$                     
Membership… 2,080.00$                   3,255.00$            9,438.00$            2,305.00$            
Janitorial 360.00$                       360.00$               -$                     -$                     
Vehicle Main. 500.00$                       -$                     -$                     -$                     
Equipment Main. 500.00$                       -$                     -$                     -$                     
Meeting Expenses -$                             1,000.00$            1,000.00$            1,500.00$            

7,640.00$                   10,735.00$         14,838.00$         14,305.00$         

Other Expenses
Misc. Exp 200.00$                       200.00$               -$                     500.00$               
Training & Travel 5,000.00$                   13,363.00$         10,000.00$         10,900.00$         
IT Service 10,750.00$                 10,750.00$         5,232.00$            7,190.00$            

15,950.00$                 24,313.00$         15,232.00$         18,590.00$         

Total Annual 76,290.00$                 81,030.00$         128,847.00$       86,012.00$         

Page 53 of 60



Page 54 of 60



Page 55 of 60



Page 56 of 60



Page 57 of 60



Page 58 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 5.a.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic 

development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to entice 
a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter 
discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public disclosure 
would violate the confidentiality of the business. This Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, 
Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes. 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:

Page 59 of 60



 

Agenda Item: 5.b.

The City of Durant

Memorandum

Date: 4/5/2022 
To: Mayor and City Council
From: Lisa Taylor, Director
Re: Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5 a. 

 
Council Information / Action Requested

City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:

ATTACHMENTS:

Page 60 of 60


	 CALL TO ORDER
	 INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE
	 ROLL CALL
	 ORDER OF BUSINESS
	1. Consent Items
	a. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of March 1, 2022
	Memorandum
	DIA 3.1.2022 Minutes (1)

	b. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes of Special Meeting March 14, 2022
	Memorandum
	DIA 3.14.2022 Minutes (Special Meeting)

	c. Consider Approval of Financial Report
	Memorandum
	Feb 2022 DIA & ED Reports
	Feb 2022 DIA & ED Incode


	2. Consider Items Removed from Consent
	3. Information Items
	a. Director's Report
	Memorandum
	March  2022 Report


	4. Administration
	a. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on Extending the Contract with New Growth Group until October 31, 2022
	Memorandum
	C-2021-61 Consulting Agreement between DIA and New Growth Group for Grant Writing Services FULLY SIGNED (2)

	b. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on 
	Memorandum
	SKM_C36822031721210 (1)

	c. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on Adopting the 2022-23 Annual Budget
	Memorandum
	DIA Proposed Budget 2022-23
	2022-23 Budget Comparison Worksheet
	FUND 020&110 FY22-23 REQUESTED BUDGET


	5. Executive Session
	a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the confidentiality of the business. This Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes.
	Memorandum

	b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5 a.
	Memorandum


	6. New Business

	 ADJOURNMENT



